
Meeting Minutes 
State College Borough Council 

Regular Meeting 
January 9, 2012 

 
The State College Borough Council met on Monday, January 9, 2012, in the State College Municipal 
Building, 243 South Allen Street, State College, PA.  Mayor Goreham called the meeting to order at 7:30 
p.m.   
 
Present: Elizabeth A. Goreham, Mayor 
  Donald H. Hahn, President of Council 
  Thomas E. Daubert 
  Catherine G. Dauler 
  Ronald L. Filippelli 
  Sarah Klinetob 
  Peter Morris 
  James L. Rosenberger 
   
Also present:  Terry J. Williams, Borough Solicitor; Thomas J. Fountaine, II, Borough Manager; Thomas 
King, Chief of Police; Carl R. Hess, Planning Director; Sharon Ergler, Assistant Borough Secretary; Roger 
Dunlap, Assistant Manager; Mark A. Whitfield, Director of Public Works, Angel Hernandez, Chief 
Technology Officer; Charles DeBow, Parking Manager; Beth Johnston, Human Resources Director; 
Brendan McNally, UPUA Student Representative; and several interested residents and members of the 
media.   
 
Mayor Goreham began with a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
PUBLIC HOUR – Mr. Ron Madrid, 701 West Beaver Avenue, a sixteen year resident of the Borough, who 
has interacted with Council over the years.  On December 19, Council elected three new Planning 
Commission members.  Two previous members, Cynthia Carpenter and Charles Gable, both had 
submitted letters requesting reappointment and both were never acknowledged. Mr. Madrid said he 
understands Council can appoint or reappoint members at their leisure.  Both Ms. Carpenter and Mr. 
Gable found out on C-NET that they were virtually fired.  He said these volunteers were not treated with 
the respect they deserved. In closing, Mr. Madrid said he was disappointed in the way this was handled 
and he felt Council owed Ms. Carpenter and Mr. Gable an apology. 
 
Innovative Technology-Based Cultural Exchange Program - Mayor Goreham issued plaques to three 
State College Area School District teachers who were recognized for an innovative global learning 
program.  Ms. Chris Crawford of Schoolwires, a local community based business, stated their business 
helps school districts connect at a local level, in the classroom, and at a global level with students around 
the country.  In 2010, State College was part of a pilot program.  SCASD has attained notoriety because 
of this program and their connection with students in Beijing, China.   The three teachers recognized were 
Sue Anderson, a Social Studies Teacher; Jane Sutterlin, the Instruction Technology Specialist, and Debra 
Poveromo, the Social Studies Curriculum Director. 
 
REPORTS 
  
State College School District’s Report on Memorial Field – Mr. Edward Poprik, State College School 
District’s Director of Physical Plant, introduced architects Tom Skibinski and John Palumbo from the 
Design Team.  This evening's report is primarily on the first two phases of the project.  These two phases 
address most of the critical needs, specifically the bleachers on the west side, which were closed due to 
structural concerns, as well the restrooms, storm water management and the field surface itself.  Mr. 
Poprik said these renovations could begin as early as this summer. 
 
Messrs. Skibinski and Palumbo briefly explained the two phases.  Phase I includes the work on the west 
bleachers and new restrooms.  In order to make these renovations, the SCASD will be seeking variances 



from the Zoning Hearing Board.  In a quick overview, this plan includes new seating, new restrooms, a 
ticket booth, and a small plaza.  This plan also includes providing ADA access and a second form of 
egress. 
 
Mr. Skibinski said the storm water detention facility will be part Phase II when they would renovate and 
install new turf along with a new storm water detention facility. 
 
Mr. Palumbo said the brick proposed is similar to what exists at the present SCASD Administration office.  
The restrooms, ticket booth, and seats will become handicapped accessible.   
 
Ms. Dauler asked if there was going to be any change to Fraser Street or the curb with the new building, 
since the building is proposed to be built right up to the property line. 
 
Mr. Palumbo said as part of the reconstruction the existing curb and sidewalk will be replaced but will 
remain in the same configuration unless Council recommends changes to the design. 
 
Mr. Daubert asked what changes will occur in the seating capacity of the west side.  Mr. Palumbo said the 
existing seat total is 1130 but with the renovations seating will be reduced to 950 seats. 
 
Mr. Rosenberger asked if access to the facility is only from within the field and not from Sidney Friedman 
Park.  Mr. Palumbo said Mr. Rosenberger was correct and that you can only go in at one location and 
only maneuver within the stadium complex. 
 
Mr. Filippelli asked if there were any issues with zoning because of the proposed building being built up to 
the property line.  Mr. Palumbo said this plan does not meet the required zoning setbacks, which is why 
the SCASD will be asking relief from the ZHB. 
 
THON Presentation – Charles DeBow, Parking Manager, and Elaine Tanella, a member of the Penn 
State THON Committee, explained that they are proposing to place six meters around State College 
outside retail establishments so people can contribute to THON by putting their pocket change into the 
meters.  He said these meters will be moved around once or twice a year to different locations.  Mr. 
DeBow said he saw this recently in an airport in Denver, Colorado.  In Denver, they were raising money 
for the homeless.  He said 100% of the money will be donated to THON.   
 
Ms. Tanella said this is a wonderful way to promote awareness for pediatric cancer.  Also, several local 
THON families will be invited to a pizza party to paint these meters. 
 
Council members agreed this was a great way to support Penn State's THON and said they would look 
for the hand-painted meters.   
 
Report on Neighborhood Dialogues – Ms. Kate Doe, Neighborhood Services Coordinator, briefly 
reviewed two initiatives being established under community building.  This was designed to follow up on 
the efforts of the LION Walk and to initiate dialogues to foster communications between students and 
non- students using Peter Block's Community Building activities.  She said this stems from a program 
offered at Fort Collins, Colorado.  This program is attractive, simple and effective.  It has been customized 
and developed in State College to bring together a circle of people and questions.  For the first organized 
meeting, sixteen out of the twenty-four invited attended without force or compensation.  Of those who 
participated, 87% said they would like to participate again.  Some of the benefits of the dialogues are 
increased emotional attachment to the community, helps to identify new leaders and community assets 
and the activity was cost effective. 
 
Ms. Doe said she would like to continue the pilot in 2012 by conducting surveys and document 
testimonials by participants.  She noted that not one of the participants, while participating, used their 
telephones or Facebook. 
 
Ms. Doe said additional components include the Good Neighbor Program for first time offenders, as well 



as educational and community building components.  These provide alternative to traditional 
consequences and it reinforces positive behaviors and restorative justice by repairing damage and 
restoring relationships.   
 
Mr. Hahn asked how future participants would be selected.  Ms. Doe said they would select from a pool 
we have already developed.  Mr. Hahn then asked where was the pool drawn from and can anyone 
apply.  Ms. Doe said this pool of participants was drawn from people who have volunteered in the past 
and the people selected for the first dialogue were selected at random. 
 
Mr. Daubert questioned how the Borough is able to get community people and students involved.  He 
said this program cannot be run just by picking from the list of people you know. 
 
Ms. Doe said we have many students who participate each year for the LION Walk and she is hopeful 
these same students or people who have participated in the Neighborhood Dialogues are interested in 
coming back and participating again or in other planned activities.  Ms. Doe said over time the Borough’s 
volunteer base will grow.   
 
Mr. Rosenberger said he was pleased to see the restorative justice proposal.  He said by bringing 
together perpetrators and victims it will reduce the fear of crime.   
 
Report on Transient or Occasional Residential Occupancy (aka Football Rentals) – Mr. Fountaine 
reviewed the report prepared by retired Assistant Manager Tom Kurtz.  The last several years, the issue 
of occasional occupancy/footballs rentals has been discussed.  The discussion focused on the impacts of 
these activities in neighborhoods and in the community at large.  Several key issues came to mind such 
the effect of these occasional rentals on the neighborhoods in terms of safety concerns, fire and life 
safety, as well as tax equity issues.  Mr. Fountaine said Mr. Kurtz recently completed the report and staff 
felt it should be made available for Council to read.  There was not a strong consensus that the Borough 
needs additional regulations from either a code or zoning standpoint; however, tax equity issues and 
being able to identify and track these units does has some affect on the homestead exclusions.   
 
Several Council members commended Mr. Kurtz on a first class report because it was thorough and well 
supported.  Mr. Filippelli said he was personally inclined to take Mr. Kurtz recommendations. 
 
Mr. Hahn asked staff to remind Council of the regulations Bed & Breakfast establishments are subject to.  
Mr. Kurtz said these kinds of establishments are widely permitted and they are subject to code 
inspections and licensing.   
 
Mr. Hess said in the R-1 and R-2 zoning districts, these rentals are treated as home occupations and it 
requires the resident/owner to live there.  In higher density zoning districts, these rentals are considered a 
tourist home, but in essence are the same thing.   
 
Mr. Kurtz said these occasional rental units are primarily used on football weekends, arts festival, 
Blue/White, and graduation weekends.  These uses have proven to be very difficult to track.  Some 
property owners place advertisements in the newspaper, on the internet, and on Craig’s List.  Mr. Kurtz 
said one community he consulted with said they do not permit these rentals and that that was because 
they are too difficult to track.  He said a registration of these occasional rentals would be helpful to identify 
where they are located and the kinds of activities that occur at these properties. 
 
Mr. Morris and Mr. Rosenberger complimented Mr. Kurtz on his detailed report.  Both agreed there was 
really no need for regulations, especially since they are hard to keep track of and since many are only 
rented by word of mouth. 
 
Mr. Daubert commented that the Borough is supposed to be protecting people to some degree.  He 
encouraged those who rent these properties to check them out before you rent them.  Check to make 
sure they have smoke detectors and fire extinguishers.   
 



Mr. Fountaine said owner-occupied properties are not subject to code regulations.  He commented if the 
Borough picks a handful of code standards to enforce on these rentals, we are assuming some degree of 
liability and responsibility.  Since most owner-occupied properties are typically well maintained, it is the 
property owner’s responsibility to make sure the people they are renting their property to take care of it 
while they are using it on a temporary basis. 
 
Staff said Bed & Breakfast establishments rent rooms on a regular basis and are subject to zoning 
regulations and other factors.  It is difficult to identify where these kinds of rental are occurring and it 
becomes very challenging.  Bed & Breakfasts are licensed businesses.     
 
Mr. Filippelli said he supports staff's recommendation in the report; however, he was not sure about the 
licensing issue.   
 
Mr. Kurtz said the purpose of the license or registration is simply of the record for the tax equity issue and 
the homestead exemption or county hotel tax, if either applies.   
 
Mr. Filippelli said he was fine with the lack of a license.  He suggested forgetting about this issue for the 
current time.  He asked why staff would bother with licensing these rentals since they are so hard to 
confirm.   
 
Ms. Klinetob asked if these properties are typically occupied on a full-time basis by a member of the 
community.  If yes, these homeowners are taking a huge risk by letting people stay in their homes.  She 
asked if this kind of rental is part of a growing trend.  She questioned how many people are willing to take 
this risk.  Ms. Klinetob said she thought it was worth gathering the information. 
 
Mr. Filippelli recommended Council dismiss these incidental rentals and not make any changes.  Mr. 
Morris seconded the motion. 
 
Ms. Dauler said one thing she heard antidotal is that renters are told they have to leave their rental 
property for football weekends.  Their leases read that they have to leave at 5 p.m. on Friday of football 
weekends and they cannot return until Sunday.  She noted she would be interested in the licensing and 
whether or not this might then add some protection to people who are vulnerable students who are 
pushed out for money-making weekends by the homeowner and/or landlord.  She said this is worth 
exploring a little more before we dismiss it entirely.   
 
Mr. Morris said Ms. Dauler makes a very interesting point and this was something he had not heard about 
but finds it appalling. 
 
Ms. Klinetob said she would be interested in having more information.  She questioned if this was a 2% or 
a 25% issue.   
 
Mr. Fountaine said staff has spent a considerable amount of time investing these rentals.  A lot happens 
off the market and it is not easy to identify these rentals.  He added that some rental leases do exactly 
what Ms. Dauler described; however, to date, staff has received no formal complaint from anyone.   
 
Mr. Hahn thanked Mr. Kurtz for all of the work he put into this report.  Ms. Dauler raised an excellent 
point.  He said Council could benefit from additional discussion. 
 
Ms. Dauler made a motion to recommend this be sent to an upcoming work session.  Mr. Hahn seconded 
the motion and it passed 6-1 with Mr. Filippelli opposing the motion. 
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
Mr. Rosenberger made a motion to approve the following consent items: 
 

 Approve vouchers for the month of December in the amount of $2,531,438.57. 



 
 Approve a 90-day Cable Franchise Agreement Extension with Windstream. The Agreement is 

95% complete, but there are a few loose ends that need to be resolved and in order to complete 
the franchise agreement. 

 
 Approve Catherine Dauler as the alternate to the COG Human Resources Committee. 

 
Mr. Daubert seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.   
 
GENERAL POLICY AND ADMINISTRATION 
 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Resolution - Mr. Morris said he had requested this item be placed on the agenda 
for Council's consideration.  Mr. Filippelli made a motion to recommend approval of the resolution 
honoring Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.  Mr. Morris seconded the motion. 
 
Ms. Jo Dumas, 516 North Atherton Street, said she was delighted to hear Council was considering this 
proposal.  The Reverend Martin Luther King, Jr. was in State College and presented here as part of his 
public life.  She said she was grateful to Mr. Morris for presenting this proposal.   
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING 
 
Planning Commission Report - Mr. Filippelli said this report was something Council needs to have more 
discussion on and he moved to refer this to a work session.  Ms. Dauler seconded the motion.   
 
Mr. Daubert asked if Council really needs to go through all three of the items listed in the Planning 
Commission's report again.  He asked if there were certain items Council could agree on so there is not a 
need to discuss all of these further. 
 
Mr. Filippelli said he was mainly interested in the inclusionary housing incentives and changes to the 
parking requirements.  Personally, Mr. Filippelli said he was ready to vote on the R-00 zoning 
amendment. 
 
Ms. Dauler said, with being new to Council, it would be helpful to her and Ms. Klinetob if they could hear 
what other Council member’s points of view are and then weigh in the decisions. 
 
Mr. Rosenberger said it makes sense to refer this to a work session, since there was a split vote on the 
overall idea.  He noted that the Planning Commission would like to discuss alternative solutions and they 
also felt the inclusionary housing would be region-wide, which bears some discussion.  He noted that the 
97% capacity could be regulated by pricing.  If a landlord raises the price of rental rates, occupancy in 
these units will likely decrease. 
 
Mr. Morris commented that the inclusionary housing ordinance has only been in effect a very short time 
and so far we have no projects to which it applies. To date, the ordinance has not been tested and we do 
not know if it will work or not.  To talk about revising it seems foolish.  Mr. Morris said he would like to 
discuss off-street parking and residential overlay. 
 
Ms. Klinetob said while she attended Council's December 19 meeting and has some knowledge about the 
Planning Commission report, she would prefer to have a work session to get up to speed.   
 
Mr. Hahn said he certainly does not oppose Ms. Dauler’s and Ms. Klinetob’s suggestion.  He said the two 
newest members of Council may change the dynamic. 
 
Mr. Daubert suggested these items be discussed one-at-a-time or at three separate work sessions.   
 



Staff said a couple of these items were related to the R-00 amendment and some issues may overlap.  
To the extent that we can separate them, we will.  There may be a need to have some on one agenda. 
 
Mr. Rosenberger said LEED criterion is used for additional density.  He requested more information on 
what that criterion is.  Staff said this is an ever evolving set of criteria. 
 
Mr. Hess said, as reported by the Planning Commission, one issue the Planning Commission has not 
settled on as the most advantageous approach.  There are a number of options that change as 
technology changes.  It is difficult to determine what the preferred option is. 
 
Council voted unanimously in favor of discussing the Planning Commission Report at an upcoming work 
session. 
 
ITEMS OF INFORMATION 
 
Mayor’s Report - Mayor Goreham welcomed the new Council.  She said it was a pleasure to meet our 
newest members.  She said she attended Council orientation last week and noted she looks forward to 
further training in her role. 
 
President’s Report - Mr. Hahn stated Council will adjourn to an Executive Session to discuss real estate, 
personnel matters, and possible litigation. 
 
Staff Reports - Mr. Fountaine said there was nothing to report. 
 
UPUA Student Representative Report - Mr. McNally said he had nothing to report. 
 
There being no further business, Council adjourned to an Executive Session at 8:47 p.m.    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Sharon K. Ergler,  
Assistant Borough Secretary 
 


